
1

WEST NORFOLK DISABILITY FORUM

Wednesday, 20th January, 2016 at 2.30 pm in the King's Court, Chapel 
Street, King's Lynn, Norfolk, PE30 1EX

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
To note any apologies for absence. 

2.  MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 8)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes from the previous 
meeting. 

3.  MATTERS ARISING AND NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON 
THE AGENDA 

4.  SECRETARY'S CORRESPONDENCE 

5.  UPDATE ON THE TOWN HALL 

6.  ADULT CARE DEVELOPMENT WORKERS 
Gemma Liczbinski from Norfolk County Council to provide an 
update. 

7.  BUS STATION WORKS UPDATE 

8.  EVENTS - ALLISON BINGHAM 

9.  CONSTITUTION (Pages 9 - 11)

The revised Constitution (attached) has now been endorsed by the 
Environment and Community Panel.   

10.  WORK PROGRAMME (Page 12)

To consider the attached Work Programme. 

11.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

12.  DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday 20th April 2016 at 2.30pm in the Committee Suite, 



2

King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, PE30 1EX. 



BOROUGH COUNCIL OF KING’S LYNN & WEST NORFOLK

WEST NORFOLK DISABILITY FORUM

Minutes of the Meeting of the above held on Wednesday, 7th October, 2015
at 2.30 pm in the Committee Suite, King's Court, Chapel Street, King's Lynn

PRESENT:

Councillor Mrs Lesley Bambridge - Borough Council
Councillor Tony Bubb (Chairman) - Borough Council
Jim Cambridge - Community Action Norfolk
Councillor Mrs Susan Fraser - Borough Council
Pat French - Vice Chairman
Laura Hampshire - Regeneration Project Officer
Genene Henshaw - Guide Dogs
Councillor Baron Chenery of Horsbrugh - Borough Council
June Leamon - West Norfolk Older Persons Forum
Councillor Miss Sam Sandell - Borough Council
Councillor Mrs Sandra Squire - Borough Council
Kathy Warner - Phobbies 

ACTION

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Lawrence, 
Allison Bingham, Tess Gilder and Helen Sismore. 

2 MINUTES FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

AGREED: The minutes from the previous meeting were agreed as a 
correct record. 

3 MATTERS ARISING AND NOT COVERED ELSEWHERE ON THE 
AGENDA 

(i) Respite Care in Norfolk

The Secretary reminded those present that at the previous meeting 
they had asked if there was a composite list of respite care available 
in Norfolk.

The Secretary confirmed that information was available at 
http://www.carehome.co.uk/care_search_results.cfm/searchcounty/Norfolk/searchc
htype/respite-care
 

3

Agenda Item 2

http://www.carehome.co.uk/care_search_results.cfm/searchcounty/Norfolk/searchchtype/respite-care
http://www.carehome.co.uk/care_search_results.cfm/searchcounty/Norfolk/searchchtype/respite-care


4 BUS STATION WORKS UPDATE 

The Regeneration Project Officer was present at the meeting and 
provided a response to the comments raised by the Forum following 
their visit to the bus station:

 The works were substantially complete with just a few minor issues 
to rectify.  Once complete a review of the project would be carried 
out.

 Since the Forum had conducted their visit to the bus station 
additional signage had been erected.

 The Regeneration Project Officer explained that the taxi rank sign 
was not flush to the wall of the car park and instead it stuck out so 
that it could be seen from Albion Street and the Museum.

 One of the aims of the project was to declutter the area, following 
responses made to the public consultation exercise and street 
furniture had been looked at. 

 The Regeneration Project Officer was in contact with the supplier of 
the notice boards which were currently leaking and issues would be 
dealt with.

 The real time information which was displayed on the screens was 
dependent on information being passed from the bus operators to 
Norfolk County Council.  Work was ongoing to encourage bus 
operators to submit information to be displayed.

 The Regeneration Project Officer reminded those present that they 
had raised issues regarding a bottleneck at the entrance to 
Sainsburys car park.  The Regeneration Project Officer commented 
that this had not been reported to her, so if the Forum were aware of 
any particular times when there were issues to let her know so that 
she could investigate and check CCTV if required.  The Bus Station 
Officer was also working to discourage people from smoking in the 
area.

 In response to a question from Genene Henshaw, the Regeneration 
Project Officer explained that there was currently one Bus Station 
Officer, but a second Officer had now been recruited.  The purpose 
of the role was to be out and about in the bus station assisting 
customers and enforcing the no smoking and no cycling rules.  
Feedback from passengers was that some would prefer the Officer 
to remain in the information office so they knew where to find him 
and some would prefer him to be out and about in the area.  It was 
suggested that a pager mechanism be placed in the information 
office, so that if a member of the public was unable to find the Bus 
Station Officer they could page him back to the office.  The 
Regeneration Project Officer agreed to investigate.

 Councillor Mrs Fraser commented that she still felt the bus station 
was an intimidating place, especially in the car park.  She 
commented that there were often groups of people congregated in 
the car park area.  The Regeneration Project Officer explained that 
CCTV had been upgraded in the area and whilst she acknowledged 
that this did not prevent anti-social behaviour, the CCTV team had a 
direct line through to the Police to report any incidents.  The 
Regeneration Project Officer explained that two types of CCTV 

4



coverage were available; static cameras and point, tilt and zoom 
cameras.  In response to a question from June Leamon, the 
Regeneration Project Officer explained that the Police did patrol the 
Bus Station area as part of their beat, but agreed to pass on the 
comments of the Forum in that they would like to see an increased 
Police presence.

 The Regeneration Project Officer informed those present that further 
work had been planned to approve the appearance of the car park.  
Painting, replacing uneven slabs and improved lighting work would 
be carried out.  She explained that this work had to be separate from 
the King’s Lynn Transport Interchange Project as it could not be 
funded by Section 106 money.  Work would be carried out after the 
Mart in February, which was considered to be a quieter period and 
hopefully cause less disruption.  The Chairman asked if there was a 
temporary solution to improving the lighting until the improvement 
works were completed and the Regeneration Project Officer agreed 
to investigate.

 The Regeneration Project Officer explained that to try and prevent 
anti-social behaviour no seating had been placed in the car park, or 
near the taxi rank.  Seating was available in the bus station which 
was undercover.   Councillor Mrs Fraser explained that some people 
were unable to stand and wait for a taxi, so it would be beneficial to 
have seating in this area.  The Regeneration Project Officer agreed 
to pass the comments on to the Board.

 The Regeneration Project Officer informed the Forum that there 
were three sets of cycle racks located in and around the bus station.  
A new cycle rack had been installed in the car park so it was 
undercover and would be opened in the next few weeks.

 Genene Henshaw asked about the colour differentiation on the 
pavements to assist people with visual impairments.  The 
Regeneration Project Officer explained that the departure points 
used different coloured pavement.  Genene Henshaw did not feel 
that there was enough of a contrast between the colours used and 
the Regeneration Project Officer agreed to pass on the comments to 
the Board.

 Councillor Mrs Bambridge referred to the taxi rank sign and asked if 
it would be possible to have an additional sign up which was flush to 
the wall so that it could be seen from all directions.

 The Regeneration Project Officer explained that discussions were 
ongoing on utilising some blank wall space in the area to display a 
map of King’s Lynn.  If this was not possible, additional signage 
could be looked at.

 Pat French commented that the West Norfolk Community Transport 
drivers had raised concerns that the bays were not big enough for 
their buses.  The Regeneration Project Officer asked if details could 
be provided to her of which bays they were parking in and she would 
investigate.

 The Chairman asked if the drop off point outside of the Lord Kelvin 
could be designated as a pick up and drop off point specifically for 
people with disabilities.

 Councillor Mrs Bambridge commented that the bollards around the 
ticket machine in the car park could become a trip hazard and the 
Regeneration Project Officer agreed to investigate.

5



 The Regeneration Project Officer explained that Ivy Panels had 
recently been installed at the Pullover roundabout, it if was proven 
that they did have a positive impact on air quality, the use of them in 
the bus station area could be investigated.

The Regeneration Project Officer agreed to pass on the comments of 
the Forum to the relevant officers and provide an update at the next 
meeting of the Forum. 

LH

5 FEEDBACK FROM THE ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY EVENT 

Three exhibitors did not turn up to the event.  Those that did (Care 
and Repair, Handyman Service, Norfolk and Norwich Association for 
the Blind, Age UK Norfolk, King’s Lynn Mobility, N-Able and Remap) 
provided good feedback and said that they had time to spend with 
each of the visitors to the stand rather than rush them through.  There 
was no large posters outside the Corn Exchange to show that the 
event was on, and it was felt that this could have drawn in some more 
members of the public.

The Forum discussed how the event could be improved if it was to go 
ahead in the future.  They agreed that publicity was important and in 
the future a Working Group could be appointed to take forward the 
arrangements for the event.

AGREED: That Allison Bingham present proposals to a future 
meeting, on future events, including cost, possible venues and review 
the success of past events. 

AB

6 REVIEW OF THE CONSTITUTION 

The draft amended Constitution was presented to the Forum for 
comments.  

The Secretary explained that she would present the Constitution to 
the Borough Council’s Environment and Community Panel for 
approval.

AGREED: The amended Constitution was agreed by the Forum. 

RP

7 SECRETARY'S CORRESPONDENCE 

(i) Opportunity Awards 2016

The Secretary had received correspondence from Allison Bingham 
regarding the 2016 Opportunity Awards.

A provisional date had been set as 22nd June 2016 at 6.15pm in the 
Town Hall.  The Forum were provided with proof art work for the 

6



event.

Allison Bingham had asked for volunteers to take forward 
arrangements for the events.

AGREED: (i) That the Opportunity Awards Working Group consists of 
the following:

Allison Bingham
Councillor Bubb
Councillor Mrs Fraser
Pat French
The Mayoress.

(ii) That the Forum be kept updated on progress with arrangements 
for the event.
 

AB

8 WORK PROGRAMME 

The Forum considered their work programme and the following 
suggestions were put forward for investigation by the Secretary:

 To invite a representative from Building Control to a future meeting 
to provide information on access to public places for people with 
disabilities.  

RP

9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

(i) Representation on the Forum

Councillor Mrs Fraser informed those present that she knew 
someone who was interested in being involved in the Forum.  The 
Secretary informed those present that the Forum was a public 
meeting and open to all.  The amended Constitution allowed for ten 
representatives to sit on the Forum and these would be appointed at 
a future meeting.  The Secretary agreed to liaise with Councillor Mrs 
Fraser to invite them to the next meeting of the Forum.

(ii) Alive Leisure – Toning Tables

Pat French informed those present that she had been made aware 
that the toning tables at Lynnsport would not be replaced when they 
had come to the end of their life span.

The Secretary agreed to contact a representative from Alive Leisure 
and ask them to provide information to the Forum.

(iii) West Norfolk Older Persons Forum

RP

RP

7



June Leamon informed those present that she was a representative 
on the above Forum and they had a programme of events, which she 
would forward to the Secretary to circulate to the Forum.

(iv) Baker Lane Car Park Public Toilets

The Chairman explained that he had recently reported issues on 
behalf of a member of the public regarding the state of the disabled 
toilet at Baker Lane Car Park.  He explained that repairs had now 
been made.

He reminded those present that if Members of the Forum were not 
having luck getting action taken that they could contact him and he 
would raise the issue with the relevant officers at the Council.

(v) Promotion of the Forum

The Forum discussed how it could promote itself.  It was suggested 
that a newsletter be provided following each meeting which could 
include information from the minutes and contributions from Members 
of the Forum.

The Secretary agreed to put together the newsletter and contributions 
from the Forum were requested no later than 30th October 2015. 

JL

RP

10 DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the West Norfolk Disability Forum was 
scheduled to take place on Wednesday 20th January 2015 at 2.30pm 
in the Committee Suite, King’s Court, Chapel Street, King’s Lynn, 
Norfolk. 

The meeting closed at 3.40 pm

8



January 2016

West Norfolk Disability Forum

Constitution and Aims and Terms of Reference

1. Introduction

1.1 The Forum is administered by the Borough Council of King’s Lynn and 
West Norfolk.

2. Membership

2.1 The Forum will consist of:

 Ten non-council representatives which will include individuals with 
disabilities, representatives of people with disabilities or organisations 
concerned with disabilities in the Borough.  These representatives will 
be appointed on an annual basis at the Annual General Meeting and 
can send substitutes to meetings if they are unable to attend..

 Seven Borough Councillors, appointed annually by full Council (who 
can send substitutes to meetings if they are unable to attend).

 Statutory organisations such as: Borough Council; Norfolk County 
Council; Health Authorities; Disability Employment Services; Education 
Services; Any other relevant organisations.

2.2 The Chairman of the Forum will be appointed at the Annual General 
Meeting and will be elected to stand annually from the seven Borough 
Councillors.  The Vice-Chairman will be a representative from the non-
council representatives and will be appointed to stand annually.

3. Operation

3.1 The Forum will receive administrative support from the Secretary who 
shall be an officer of the Borough Council and advice and support from 
the Council’s NRAC (National Register of Access Consultants) Auditor.

3.2 The Forum will report annually, and at other times deemed necessary, 
to the Borough Council’s Environment and Community Panel.

3.3 The Forum can make recommendations to the Borough Council’s 
Environment and Community Panel as appropriate.  The Environment 
and Community Panel can also task the Forum with investigating 
issues within the Forum’s objectives. 

3.4 The Forum’s Constitution and Aims and Terms of Reference shall only 
be changed with the formal agreement of the West Norfolk Disability 
Forum.  Any changes to the Constitution will also be presented to the 
Borough Council’s Environment and Community Panel.

3.5 The Forum can appoint working groups comprising of Councillors and 
other members which shall be authorised to meet between meetings of 

9

Agenda Item 9



January 2016

the Forum for the purpose of providing, the Forum, the Borough 
Council and its Committees with advice on matters.

3.6 The Forum will meet on a quarterly basis.  Any minor time-critical 
matters requiring a decision shall be made with the agreement of the 
Chairman and Vice Chairman and will be reported to the following 
meeting of the Forum.  Any decisions involving significant expenditure 
will require a majority vote of the Councillors and non-Council 
representatives on the forum and, if time-critical, electronic agreement 
will be acceptable. 

4. Meetings

4.1 Meetings of the Forum shall be held in public unless the Forum resolve 
otherwise.

4.2 The Forum will meet on a quarterly basis.

4.3 The Forum will hold its annual general meeting in July.  The schedule 
of future meetings and the Forum’s Annual report will be presented to 
the Annual General Meeting.  The Forum’s Annual Report will also be 
presented to the Environment and Community Panel.

4.4 Agendas for the meetings will be available five clear days in advance of 
the meeting.

4.5 For meetings to be quorate a minimum of three of the Council 
representatives and a quarter of the non-council representatives must 
be present.

5. Objectives

5.1 To relieve the needs of disabled people by the promotion of equality, 
diversity and independence through the provision of services, support, 
information and training.

5.2 To provide a meeting at which disabled people and other 
representatives can meet with and discuss with representatives of 
other organisations matters of interest or concern.

5.3 To raise awareness of the requirements of disabled people in the 
Borough and communicate its views and findings to relevant bodies 
and agencies.

5.4 To act as a consultative body for the Borough Council on issues which 
affect people with disabilities and carry out joint projects with other 
organisations as appropriate.

5.5 To increase disability awareness.

10



January 2016

5.6 To support and promote the West Norfolk Disability Forum’s Awards 
Schemes and events.

5.7 To support, promote and develop the Borough Council’s online access 
guide.

11



08/12/2015
West Norfolk Disability Forum – Work Programme – 2015/2016

Date of Meeting Items

7th October 2015 at 
2.30pm.

 Bus station works – update – Laura Hampshire to attend.
 Feedback from the Assistive Technology Event
 Review of the Constitution

20th January 2016 at 
2.30pm

 Adult Care Development Workers – Gemma Liczbinski, Norfolk County Council
 Update on Bus Station – Laura Hampshire.
 Allison Bingham – proposals on future events, including costs, possible venues and a review of the 

success of past events.
 Constitution update – following presentation of Constitution to the Environment and Community 

Panel.
20th April 2016 at 
2.30pm
27th July 2016 at 
2.30pm – Annual 
General Meeting

- Update on the Lynnsport Road – to be scheduled
- Update on Town Hall Works

12

A
genda Item

 10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes from the previous meeting
	9 Constitution
	10 Work Programme

